
            
JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 19, 2019, AT 6:30 PM 

61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CA  92252 
 

AGENDA 
 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. 
 

3. 
 
   

 4. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
   

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Pages 3-8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pages 9-25 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 26 -27 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 5. 
 

 

 

 

 
 6. 

 

 

 

 
 

 7. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 8. 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

Members of the public may address the Board at this time with regard to matters within the 

Board’s jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda.  State law prohibits the Board of Directors 

from discussing or taking action on items not included on the agenda.  Members of the public 

will have the opportunity for public comment on any item listed on the agenda when it is 

addressed on the agenda.  Please limit comments to three (3) minutes or less. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR –  
 

 Special “Workshop” Meeting Draft Minutes May 30, 2019 

 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes June 5, 2019  

 Special Meeting Draft Minutes June 12, 2019 

 Approval and Adoption of the Strategic Plan 
 

PUBLIC HEARING – At this time the Board will conduct a Public Hearing to receive and 

discuss public input & comments regarding the water availability charges for 19/20 and 

authorizing collection by San Bernardino County.  
 

The public hearing should be conducted as follows: 
 

 HEARING OPENED BY PRESIDING OFFICER 

 RECEIVE STAFF REPORT 

 BOARD QUESTIONS 

 PUBLIC TESTIMONY OPENED BY PRESIDING OFFICER 

 RECEIVE PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING 

 BOARD ACTION 
 

JBWD BOARD MEMBER VACANCY – Recommend that the Board discuss and determine 

how to proceed with the filling of the vacancy created by the passing of Mickey Luckman.  

Government Code Section 1780 provides that the Board may fill the vacancy by an 

appointment or by call for a Special Election. 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 1 of 42



Pages 28-33 

 

 

 

 

 

Pages 34-37 

 

 

 

Pages 38-42 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 9. 

 
 
 
 
 

10. 
 

 

 
 

11. 
 

 

 
 

12. 
 

13. 
 

14. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15. 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

16. 

 

 

APPOINTMENT OF INTERIM GENERAL MANAGER AND APPROVAL OF 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT – Recommend that the Board consider appointing Mark C. 

Ban to the position of Interim General Manager and approval of the Employment Agreement 

for said position/appointment which has been negotiated pursuant to the guidelines provided by 

the Board, a copy of which is included in the agenda packet. 

 

ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION #19-1001, ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATION 

LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 – Recommend that the Board adopt Resolution No. 

19-1001. 
 

APPROVAL AND ADOPTION OF THE EMERENCY RESPONSE PLAN AND THE 

LOCAL HAZARD MITIGARION PLAN – Recommend that the Board approve and adopt, 

in separate motions, Resolution No.19-1002 JBWD Hazard Mitigation Plan and Resolution No. 

19-1003 JBWD Emergency Response Plan. 
 

DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT – Mr. Gil Granito 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT –  Curt Sauer 
 

DIRECTOR COMMENTS & REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

 Public Outreach Consultant – Kathleen Radnich 

 Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts (ASBCSD) Dinner at Percy 

Bakker Community Center, Hesperia, CA – June 17, 2019 - Director Reynolds. 
 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES  
  

 Mojave Water Agency Board of Directors Meetings- June 27, 2019 at 9:30 a.m. – Vice 

President Unger 
 

 Citizens Advisory Committee – July 9, 2019, at 6:00 p.m. – Chairperson Karen Tracy 
 

 Finance Committee – July 10, 2019, at 9:00 a.m. – President Johnson and Vice 

President Unger 
 

 Water Resources and Operations Committee – July 10, 2019, at 10:30 a.m.-Director 

Hund and Director Reynolds 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

    
 

INFORMATION 

The public is invited to comment on any item on the Agenda during discussion of that item. 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 

District at (760) 974-0072, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 

accommodation. 
 

Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 

public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 2 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 3 of 42



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 5, 2019 
 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:30 

p.m.  
 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM – President Johnson, Vice President Unger, Director Hund, Director 

Luckman, and Director Reynolds. 
 

STAFF PRESENT -Curt Sauer, GM, Mark Ban, AGM-Operations, Susan Greer, AGM-Finance, Anne 

Roman, Accountant, Sarah Johnson, Director of Administration, and Beverly Waszak, Executive Assistant 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT - Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach, and Mr. Gil Granito, Redwine and 

Sherrill, District Counsel. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Director Hund moved to approve the Agenda.  Director Luckman seconded. 
 

MSC¹ (Hund/Luckman) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Draft Minutes April 17, 2019, Draft Minutes May 1, 2019, Special Meeting 

Draft Minutes, May 15, 2019, and Draft Minutes May 15, 2019.  Director Luckman moved to approve the 

Consent Calendar.  President Johnson seconded. 
 

MSC¹ (Luckman/Johnson) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

PRESENTATION BY MOJAVE WATER AGENCY – Jim Ventura, MWA Board, presented GM Curt 

Sauer with an award for his outstanding service and dedication to the Joshua Basin Water District.  
 

Tom McCarthy also told GM Sauer what a pleasure it is to work with him then went on to inform every one 

of the leak on the Morongo Basin Pipeline since Friday, May 31, 2019, and then spoke about the State 

Water Project, which is in great shape, with a 70% allocation.  Mr. McCarthy spoke on the California Water 

Fix with Governor Newsome.  This was followed by a brief Q&A with the Board and staff. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – 
 

Al Marquez, Sunfair Community, asked who would be responsible for the pipeline once the bond is paid off 

in 2022 or 2023.   
 

Jim Ventura stated that this concern was brought to the Commission 4 months ago that the Morongo Basin 

agencies should own the pipeline.  An analysis was done by Marina West and Mike Simpson, and the MB 

Agencies would not be able to afford it. It was concluded that the Mojave Water Agency would be 

responsible for the pipeline.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT CLOSED 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 4 of 42



GM Sauer thanked Tom McCarthy and Jim Ventura for their support the last five (5) years and said he 

couldn’t have done it without a supportive Board and staff to back him.  He also thanked Yvonne, Michele, 

Lance, Christie, Daryl, Mike, Kathy, Matt, and the MWA Board for their support the last five (5) years. 
 

BUDGET APPROVAL – AGM Greer gave the staff report, and she informed everyone at the meeting that 

all 5 Board members were at both the Finance Committee and Water Resources Committee meetings to 

review the 2019/2020 Budget. This was followed by a brief Q&A by the Board. 
 

President Johnson moved to approve the 19/20 Budget.  Director Hund seconded. 
 

MSC¹ (Johnson/Hund) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 19-997 AND RESOLUTION NO. 19-998 OF INTENTION TO DISSOLVE 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #1 AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #2 – AGM Greer gave the staff 

report and informed the Board that Improvement District #1 and Improvement District #2 needed to be 

formally resolved. This was followed by a brief Q&A with the Board. 
 

Vice President Unger motioned to adopt Resolution No. 19-997. Director Hund seconded. 
 

MSC¹ (Unger/Hund) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

Vice President Unger motioned to adopt Resolution No. 19-998. Director Reynolds seconded. 
 

MSC¹ (Unger/Reynolds) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

CONSIDER REPLACEMENT OF BALL AND CHECK VALVES AS WATER METERS ARE 

REPLACED AT A COST OF $500,250 OVER FIVE YEARS – AGM Greer gave the staff report, and a 

brief Q&A followed with the Board. 
 

Director Reynolds motioned to adopt Resolution No. 19-998. Director Luckman seconded. 
 

MSC¹ (Reynolds/Luckman) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Hund, Johnson, Luckman, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  None 

Abstain: None 
 

DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT – No report. 
 

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT – GM Sauer updated the Board on the Resolutions for the Hazard 

Mitigation Plan and the Emergency Response Plan for the District and they have been approved by FEMA.  

AGM Ban followed with an update on the CIRP and the new equipment that was recently purchased. 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 5 of 42



DIRECTOR COMMENTS & REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED – 

 

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant, reminded everyone that it is high water demand season.  

The Farmers Market June booth theme is “understanding our aquifer.” There will be a dunk tank at the JT 

Community Center on June 29, 2019, from 4-9 p.m. 
 

Director Hund commented on the convenience of the 5-gallon water jugs in Home Depot and Walmart to 

store water at your home. 
 

Director Reynolds commented that it is a good idea to also rotate your water stock.  He also thanked Jim 

Ventura and Tom McCarthy for being a part of the Board meeting tonight. 
 

Vice President Unger commented on GM Sauer’s learning about the District when he first began as GM. 
 

President Johnson thanked all the first responders. 
 

FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES – President Johnson read off the 

upcoming meetings for the Board members. 
 

CLOSED SESSION - At approximately 7:42 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session as reflected in item 

#15 of the June 5, 2019, Agenda.  The Closed Session ended at approximately 8:22 pm, and the Regular 

Session resumed. No reportable action was taken.  Action on this matter will be considered in Open Session 

at the June 19, 2019, regular meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 

ADJOURNMENT – President Johnson adjourned the Board of Directors meeting at 8:24 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

__________________________________ 

Curt Sauer, Board Secretary and General Manager 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 6 of 42



JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 

SPECIAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 12, 2019 

 

 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – President Johnson called the meeting to order at 10:30 

a.m.  
 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM – President Johnson, Vice President Unger, and Director Reynolds. 
 

ROLL CALL; 
 

Present:  Johnson, Reynolds, and Unger 

Absent:  Hund and Luckman 
 

STAFF PRESENT -Curt Sauer, GM, Mark Ban, AGM-Operations, Beverly Waszak, Executive Assistant 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT – Mr. Gil Granito, District Legal Counsel 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA –MSC¹ (Unger/Reynolds) motion carried by the following vote: 
 

Ayes:  Johnson, Reynolds, and Unger 

Noes:     None 

Absent:  Hund and Luckman 

Abstain: None 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 

CLOSED SESSION-  At this time the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957 (b) (1) to consider the appointment/employment of an Interim General Manager, effective 

upon Mr. Sauer’s scheduled retirement. 

 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION – The Board returned to Open Session at 10:43 a.m. 

 

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION – District General Counsel reported that at approximately 10:33 a.m. the 

Board of Directors went into Closed Session as reflected in Item #6 of the June 12, 2019 Agenda.  The 

discussion related to the appointment of an Interim General Manager. No reportable action was taken at this 

time.  Action will be taken at the June 19, 2019 regular Board of Directors meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT –President Johnson adjourned the meeting at 10:45 a.m. 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted: 

 

_________________________________________ 

Curt Sauer, Secretary of the Board and General Manager 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 7 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 8 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 9 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 10 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 11 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 12 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 13 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 14 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 15 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 16 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 17 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 18 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 19 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 20 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 21 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 22 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 23 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 24 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 25 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 26 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 27 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 28 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 29 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 30 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 31 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 32 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 33 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 34 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 35 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 36 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 37 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 38 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 39 of 42



STATE OF CALIFORNIA               ) 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO) ss 

CITY OF                                           ) 

 

I, Curt Sauer, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin Water District do hereby 

certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 19-1002 was duly adopted and passed at the regular 

meeting of the Board of Directors on the 19th of June 2019, by the following vote to wit: 

 

AYES:   Hund, Johnson, Reynolds, and Unger 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

 

 

 

    _______________________________________ 

    Curt Sauer, Secretary 

    Joshua Basin Water District and of the  

    Board of Directors thereof; 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 40 of 42



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 41 of 42



STATE OF CALIFORNIA               ) 

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO) ss 

CITY OF                                           ) 

 

I, Curt Sauer, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Joshua Basin Water District do hereby 

certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 19-1003 was duly adopted and passed at the regular 

meeting of the Board of Directors on the 19th of June 2019, by the following vote to wit: 

 

AYES:   Hund, Johnson, Reynolds, and Unger 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

 

 

 

    _______________________________________ 

    Curt Sauer, Secretary 

    Joshua Basin Water District and of the  

    Board of Directors thereof; 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
June 19, 2019 Page 42 of 42




